
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

May 28, 2024 

 

The Honorable Monica M. Bertagnolli, M.D. 

Director 

National Institutes of Health  

9000 Rockville Pike  

Bethesda, MD 20892  

 

Dear Director Bertagnolli: 

 

 The Select Subcommittee on the Coronavirus Pandemic (Select Subcommittee) wrote to 

the National Institutes of Health (NIH) regarding National Institute of Allergy and Infectious 

Diseases (NIAID) Senior Scientific Advisor, Dr. David Morens’s, apparent mishandling of 

government information on June 29, 2023,1 September 15, 2023,2 and October 5, 2023.3 

Specifically, the Select Subcommittee was concerned about Dr. Morens’s use of personal e-mail 

accounts to avoid transparency, intentionally avoid transparency via the Freedom of Information 

Act (FOIA), and the possibility that he intentionally deleted official records—specifically 

records related to the origin of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 

On April 16, 2024, the Select Subcommittee announced a subpoena for pertinent 

documents from Dr. Morens’s personal e-mails.4 These documents shed light on a troubling 

pattern in NIH, specifically the Office of the Director of NIAID, of disdain for or outright 

avoidance of public accountability (see e.g. Enclosure 1 and Enclosure 2).  

 

I. NIAID Officials Forwarded Internal FOIA Deliberations to Outside Interested 

Parties.  

 

As further described in Enclosure 1, evidence in possession of the Select Subcommittee 

suggests that NIAID officials would give forewarning of potentially damaging FOIA productions 

to non-governmental individuals, in particular, Dr. Peter Daszak, President of EcoHealth 

 
1 Letter from Hon. Brad Wenstrup, Chairman, Select Subcomm. on the Coronavirus Pandemic, H. Comm. On 

Oversight & Accountability, to Dr. David Morens, Senior Scientific Advisor, Nat’l Inst. Of Allergy & Infectious 

Diseases, (June 29, 2023). 
2 Letter from Hon. Brad Wenstrup, Chairman, Select Subcomm. on the Coronavirus Pandemic, H. Comm. On 

Oversight & Accountability, to Dr. David Morens, Senior Scientific Advisor, Nat’l Inst. Of Allergy & Infectious 

Diseases, (September 15, 2023). 
3 Letter from Hon. Brad Wenstrup, Chairman, Select Subcomm. on the Coronavirus Pandemic, H. Comm. On 

Oversight & Accountability, to Dr. David Morens, Senior Scientific Advisor, Nat’l Inst. Of Allergy & Infectious 

Diseases, (October 5, 2023). 
4 Letter from Hon. Brad Wenstrup, D.P.M., Chairman, Select Subcomm. on the Coronavirus Pandemic, H. Comm. 

on Oversight & Accountability, to David Morens, M.D. (Apr. 16, 2024).  



‘The Honorable Monica M. Bertagnolli, M.D.
May 28,2024
Page2

Alliance, Inc. The Select Subcommittee is concemed that Dr. Morens’ personal relationship with
Dr. Daszak motivated him —against the interestsof his employer — to help “one of [his] oldest
and best friends” avoid scrutiny.
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II. The NIH FOIA Office May Have Been Complicit in the Destruction ofOfficial
Records.

As further described in the attached Enclosure 1, evidence in possession ofthe Select
‘Subcommittee suggests that NIAID employees used the NIH FOIA Office to assist in the
‘concealment or destructionofofficial records.
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HL NIAIDEmployeesUsedApparentIntentional MisspellingstoAvoid FOIA
Searches.

After an agency receives a FOIA request, it is common to employ key word search terms
to identify and subsequently produce responsive documents to the requester. This process is vital
to ensure transparency and accountability. However, it can be undermined by goverment
employees that strategically use language to avoid key word searches. Evidence in possession of
the Select Subcommittee suggests this may havebeen a common tactic within NIAID and
routinely employed by Dr. Anthony Fauci’s former-ChiefofStaff, Greg Folkers.
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‘This evidence taken together suggests a conspiracy at the highest levels of NIH and
NIAID to avoid public transparency regarding the COVID-19 pandemic. A pandemic that took
the lives of more than one million Americans.Ifwhat appears in these documents is true, this is

an apparent attack on public trust and must be met with swift enforcement and consequences for
those involved.

‘We write to you to requesta stafflevel briefing no later than June 4, 2024, regarding
'NIH’s document retention, transparency, FOIA, and personal e-mail policies. NIH serves the

American taxpayer. The Select Subcommittee takes these allegations seriously and expects you
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do to. Further, the Select subcommittee reserves the right to request transcribed interviews with 

NIH employees regarding the issues outlined in this letter.  

 

House Resolution 5 specifically authorizes the Select Subcommittee to investigate “the 

origins of the Coronavirus pandemic, including but not limited to the Federal Government’s 

funding of gain-of function research,” and “executive branch policies, deliberations, decisions, 

activities, and internal and external communications related to the coronavirus pandemic.”5 To 

that end, the Select Subcommittee is tasked to learn from the U.S. response to the COVID-19 

pandemic and recommend alterations where necessary to enhance our preparedness and 

responses in the future. To ask any follow-up or related questions please contact Committee staff 

at (202) 225-5074. 

 

 Thank you for your attention to this very important matter. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

          

     Brad Wenstrup, D.P.M. 

     Chairman  

 

 

cc: The Honorable Raul Ruiz, M.D., Ranking Member 

 Select Subcommittee on the Coronavirus Pandemic   

 

Enclosures (2) 

 
5 H. Res. 5 § 4(a)(2)(A)(i), (vii), (ix). 




